0000®

000
QLo
o 1
ooe
THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

MESMEBRSRAR"
(BB AR 3 A 7 2 RS 7

(BB - 8119)

0000 ®

BEZ-—ZE—NF=ZA=+—BHLEFE
EFEEBENG

BRBEXZMAERAT (B AIEMR (TRIRR ] HEE

RIRRNEN  DRAEKEBEEMEBRXA ELTNARFTERSREARNATARE B LT
5 ARREMATETHRERZZIQAANEEAR  YRECEFHEAFNERRLFHRE
RE - RIERMNESEREEMRBERTAERRECEXEREMERRESE -

HRAIERLTARAHEIMEER  EAXREECRSTHEERRNEIRNEEZRFEZIEKX
ZHERBRR  FEREZRBEAXREE.RSFSASARBEEZNS -

Bt 5 R AT R L 7] K2 il i 7 58 5 T A R4 Al 5K 2 M 1 I 5 A B B B R
TEIENETR A FELAT AT HEE B > S0 W 1 2 705 WA B IR A 23l 2 B8 2 AT o] 505 57+ 131 2% 17 7 21 2 IR 1 HE % <
A1 T 5/ B 2 AT 1B AR PG AT 1 BT AT -

AL (B RO SE [ R 2 75 2 ([ 325 ) B[R] KA ) 380 S 7R 05 2 S BCAF ) 7 28 G 2 i e
K5 PR AR R a7 AR (TRIEBR_E AR ) 195 5E T 48 (A B Bl 0 5 B A TR
LA N EH o F HFREF L — G PEE A - TERE R F TR 1. AR 2 P i & 75 A
7 B o S R SE R o H MR I 5 2. 500 A I AT ] B EAE AR L M P ] 1A B A R R
3. AL A HAE R — DR LI RS R A A AL T M A L2 P B B % 2 TR

LM H B H G2 D £ KR Z AT www. hkgem.com Z [ B4 Al 2477 | R AR 2N 7] 4

i www.thizgroup.com FIJ & °

o EE



Corporate Information

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographical Details of Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial Summary

Particulars of Properties

EEREAMRE
EFEWE
B AZ AR E

RAEPBIRE
FATEAR IR

MR It
MBHRE
E S

Contents
EE::

20
26
28
29
31
32
34
35
90

92

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 F ik



Bie

Corporate Information

EXEH

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)

Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre

37 Ma Tau Wai Road
To Kwa Wan
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Share Registrar
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

MOES
TR (FTRAEH A L)
HRERS

FEMITES
MEFT S AE
HEZELT
RRI5NZ =

BYIFMTES
KBS
mESLL
it

MMBEREZERIIS

=B

e

+IE
FEEEIE 37 5

ARPEEFR LB ESESIORE

Gl E T

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

F2RNIBFE R

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

SERDBFEL DR
SEEEEERAR

S

ERKEFT 1835

AR 2212



Principal Banker
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
82-84 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Auditor
BDO Limited

25th Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Compliance Officer
Mr. Lin En Fu

Audit Committee
Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

Company Secretary and Financial Controller
Mr. Wong Lam (FCPA, MBA)

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Mr. Wong Lam (FCPA, MBA)

Company Website
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ER T

Business Review

Looking back over the past year, despite of indicators signaling improvement
in the global economy, the overall recovery has been weak. As market demand
slowed down while the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) was restructuring its
industries, the pace of its economic growth also decreased.

Although the growth of the PRC was not as strong as in the past, the Group
completed the very substantial acquisition of properties in Shanghai, the PRC on 22
August 2013 as the Group intended to diversify its business and considered that there
is still long-term growth potential and good investment value in first-tier cities such as
Beijing and Shanghai.

During the year, the Group’s turnover and gross profit increased year on year. The
increase mainly came from the stable and recurring rental income from the above
properties. The fair value appreciation of such properties also contributed capital gain
for the Group.

Prospects

In recent months, sustaining trend of gradual appreciation of Renminbi reversed and
Renminbi depreciation was seen. This appears to reflect the decreasing growth of
the PRC and its potential risk. Furthermore, the weakness in export and decline in
Purchasing Managers Index also point to less than optimistic prospects of the PRC’s
economy in the near term. In particular, whether a recession will occur in the real
estate market of the PRC is causing concern. However, as policies for stabilising the
economy and providing micro stimulus are dominating, it is expected that various
initiatives to boost growth will be launched which may revitalize the economic growth
of the PRC.

After completing the acquisition of the above properties, property projects have
gradually become the focus of the Group’s business. The Group will continue to
evaluate other potential investment opportunities prudently, and maintain a proper
balance between different regions and industries when considering the allocation of
resources.

Since the Group’s business is still focusing on the PRC market, the Group will
continue to strive for breakthrough and achievement internally in financial structure
adjustment and externally in business development, irrespective of whether the PRC’s
economy will slow down this year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial Review

The Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to HK$1,350,000 (2013: HK$784,000).
During the year, loss before taxation for the year was HK$6,836,000, compared to
HK$7,782,000 in the corresponding period of last year.

Gross profit for the Group increased from HK$500,000 in 2013 to HK$1,164,000 in
2014, while the gross profit margin increased from 64% to 86% due to higher profit
margin for rental income of new business.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$8,051,000 (2013: HK$7,217,000).
Compared to last year, the operating costs have increased by 12%.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company and loss per share for the year were
HK$7,360,000 (2013: HK$7,771,000) and HKO0.4 cents (2013: HK0.5 cents)
respectively.

Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 March 2014, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$59,015,000
(2013: HK$10,507,000). Current assets amounted to HK$15,870,000 (2013:
HK$10,483,000), of which HK$15,427,000 (2013: HK$9,867,000) were cash and
bank deposits. Current liabilities of HK$3,972,000 (2013: HK$10,761,000) mainly
comprised of trade payables, receipts in advance, other payables, deposit received
and accruals, amount due to the spouse of a director and loan. Current ratio of
the Group was 4.0 (2013: 1.0) and gearing ratio of the Group was 2.0 (2013: (1.4))
representing the Group’s borrowings divided by total equity.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$11,898,000 (2013: net current liabilities of HK$278,000).

Investments held and material acquisitions and disposals

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2013
regarding a very substantial acquisition in relation to the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Kingray International Inc. (“Target Company”) by Thizbiz
Incorporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”).

All conditions precedent under the acquisition agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion took place on 22 August 2013.

Upon completion, 400,000,000 ordinary shares (“Consideration Shares”) were to be
allotted and issued to the vendor. The Target Company becomes an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of the Target Group was
consolidated to that of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B ER RS ()

Financial Review (continued)
Loan Capitalisation

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 20 June 2014, the
Company and a third party lender and a shareholder (the “Subscribers”) entered
into the subscription agreements whereby the Subscribers agreed to subscribe for,
and the Company agreed to issue and allot for an aggregate of 172,965,360 ordinary
shares at HK$0.1 per share to settle the loans owed by the Group to the Subscribers
to the extent of HK$17,297,000.

Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s main operations are in the PRC and Taiwan and its income and

expenses are transacted in RMB and NT$ respectively. Accordingly, it has no
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no charge or pledge of assets. Details of
contingent liabilities are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Capital commitments

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no material capital commitment.
Management and employees

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 23 employees, including the Directors of the
Company. Salaries of employees are primarily based on prevailing market salary
levels and year end bonuses are granted at the end of each calendar year. Other

employees’ benefits include mandatory provident fund, medical cover and other
insurance.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 59, is an Executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in sales and marketing, in particular in
electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong was the Chairman of Association of
Electronic Components Industry of Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales
and marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Department of
Industrial Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma and a MBA
of the University of South Australia.

Mr. Lin En Fu

Mr. Lin En Fu, aged 58, is currently the Chief Operational Officer of the Company. He
holds a master degree in Economics of the University of Kansas and had served for
First Commercial Bank of Taiwan for 21 years.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, aged 60, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had been involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He was the Vice President of Holtek Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. in 1999. Besides, he was also the Chief Financial Officer of United
Microelectronics Corporation from 1983 to 2001, a semi-conductor manufacturer
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Taiwan, and had been working
there for about 18 years.

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen, aged 49, graduated from the department of Broadcasting and TV
of Shih Hsin University in Taiwan. She was the executive secretary of Franklin Advisors
Inc. and subsequently worked as the Vice President of Le Kao Co., Ltd. Ms. Hsieh has
extensive experience in the field of administration and management.

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru, aged 46, graduated with a Master Degree in Management from
Yuan Ze University in Taiwan. She was the assistant to president of Lung Hwa
Electronics Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2003, and subsequently the Vice President of Chi
Fu Jong Hua Co., Ltd. Ms. Wu has extensive experience in the field of public relations
and consultancy.
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)

EE S UIE D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Mr. Chu Meng Chi, aged 49. He obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Taiwan National Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Chu has over 20
years’ experience in the field of corporate administration and financial investment.

Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Ms. Chan Mei Sze, aged 49, is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has over 23 years’ accounting and finance experience in various
industries in Hong Kong.

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, aged 43, has a master degree from the New York Institute of
Technology-Vancouver in Canada. She has over 20 years’ management experience
in various industries.

Ms. Lin is also an Executive Director of TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (Stock code:
8022).
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The Company endeavors to comply with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing a formal and
transparent procedure to protect and maximise the interests of shareholders during
the year ended 31 March 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf of shareholders.
The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on
the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (CEO and Chairman) and Mr. Lin En Fu; three Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen and Ms. Wu Chiao Ru and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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Corpor‘ate Governance Report (Continued)
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%EI:I (HLE)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The primary functions of the Board include:

)

(i)

(V)

(V)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and financial
performance and formulating appropriate policies to manage risk exposure
associated with realising the strategies and goals of the Group;

being held accountable for the internal control system of the Company and
responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

being ultimately responsible for preparing financial accounts and discussing the
performance, financial conditions and prospects of the Company in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible manner. These responsibilities are applicable to
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Company, other price sensitive
announcements published according to the GEM Listing Rules and disclosure
of other financial information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and
information disclosable under statutory requirements; and regularly reviewing
its own functions and the powers conferred upon Executive Directors to ensure
appropriate arrangements are in place;

whilst Executive Directors, who oversee the overall business of the Company,
are responsible for the daily operations of the Company, the Board is
responsible for affairs involving the overall policies, finance and shareholders of
the Company, namely financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes
to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material contracts, major
financing arrangements, principal investment and risk management strategy;

the management is well informed of its powers and duties with clear guidelines
and instructions, in particular regarding situations under which reporting to the
Board is necessary and matters that require the approval of the Board before
any decisions or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company; and

the full Board meets at least four times a year, at approximately quarterly
intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Group that require the resolution of the
Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when Individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if they
are unable to attend the meeting in person.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(vii) The terms of reference of the Board also include:

a) to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development

of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance with legal

and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to

employees and directors; and

(e) to review the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, list of Directors and the attendance records of

the Directors and members of the committees:

Total Number of Meetings

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tRERHE (H)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has adopted a set of Code on Corporate Governance (“Company Code”)
which sets out the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to direct
and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by referencing to the principles, code
provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance (“GEM Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board will continue to monitor and revise the Company Code and assess the
effectiveness of our corporate governance practices in tandem with changes in the
environment and requirements under the GEM Code, to ensure the Company Code is
in line with the expectations and interests of shareholders and comply with the GEM
Code.

Except as mentioned below, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the GEM Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The GEM Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong is both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
who is responsible for managing the Board and the Group business. The Board
considers that, with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as Mr. Wong is
perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles in which he has been
acting. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation of the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the GEM Code Provision A.4.1, all the Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, the Non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.6.7 and E.1.2

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent Non-executive Directors and other
Non-executive Directors should attend general meeting and have a fair understanding
of the shareholders’ opinion. Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the Annual General Meeting and also invite the chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and any
other committee to the meeting.

Non-executive Directors and independent Non-executive Directors could not attend

the Annual General Meeting held on 27 September 2013 due to extraordinary
business activities and unexpected events.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Code Provision C.1.3

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded loss. The Directors are
of the opinion that the Group has already adopted measures to improve its overall
financial position, immediate liquidity and cash flow to sustain the operation of the
Group’s business.

The Directors believes that the Group will have sufficient cash resources to meet
its capital needs and financial obligations in future operation if the measures can
bring about the expected results. Therefore, the Directors are of the view that it is
appropriate to compile these financial statements on going concern basis.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Company reports to all Directors regularly to allow the Directors to fully
understand the responsibility they share in the operation and the business of the
Group. The Group arranges professional development training for all Directors to
broaden and update their knowledge and skills, constantly informs all Directors about
the GEM Listing Rules and the latest development of other applicable regulations
to ensure the Directors comply with relevant regulation and raise their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided their training
record.

The records of training the Directors received during the year ended 31 March 2014
are as follows:

Name of Directors EEHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong FelREE
Mr. Lin En Fu MAEBRE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen WMEZEL T
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru BRI+
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin MREHT A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFETES
Mr. Chu Meng Chi KRB E
Ms. Chan Mei Sze BRIEFF 2+
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny Mk Z =
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tRERHE (F

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR STAFF

The Company has made appropriate arrangement regarding insurance, which covers
potential legal action faced by directors and senior staff.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Lam is the company secretary of the Company. His authorized duties
include ensuring the Board of Directors to operate effectively and fulfill its duties,
drafting agenda for the Board of Directors’ meetings and shareholders’ meetings and
ensuring the clear and effective communication among members of the Board and
also between members of the Board and the shareholders and management. During
the year, the company secretary has undergone professional training for over 15
hours to gain the most updated knowledge to facilitate his discharge of duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Membership

1. The Committee shall consist of 3 Independent non-Executive Directors
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.

2. The Board shall nominate one of the members as the chairman of the
Committee.

3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s
Secretary.

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least once every year.

5. The chairman of the Committee may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 2 members of the Committee.

7. Proceedings of meetings of the Committee shall be governed by the provisions

of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Duties, powers and functions

8. The Committee shall:

(@ implement the remuneration policy laid down by the Board;

(o) recommend to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management;

(© review the remuneration of Directors and senior management;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Duties, powers and functions (continued)

(d) review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal
or removal for misconduct to Directors;

(e) review the criteria for assessing employee performance, which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets;

f) consider the annual performance bonus for Executive Directors,
senior management, and the general staff, having regard to their
achievements against the performance criteria and by reference to
market norms and make recommendation to the Board;

(¢)} do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

(h) conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitution
of the Company or imposed by legislation.

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi, an Independent
Non-executive Director, and other members include Ms. Lin Yan Jenny and Ms. Chan
Mei Sze being Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee of the Company convened one
meeting, and all matters concerning the determination of remuneration of the
Directors and senior management were discussed. In addition, the remuneration
policies and incentive mechanism applicable to the Directors and senior management
and the overall remuneration system of the Group were further refined and reasonable
recommendations were made to the Board in the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Membership
1. The Committee shall consist of 5 Directors appointed by the Company’s Board

of Directors from time to time, at least 3 of them shall be independent non-
Executive Directors.

2. The Board shall designate one of the members as the Committee’s chairman.
3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s
Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tRERHE (H)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4, The Committee shall meet at least once annually.

5. In addition, the Committee’s Chairman may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 3 Committee members.

7. Proceedings of the Committee’s meetings shall be governed by the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Duties, powers and functions

8. The Committee shall:

() regularly review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify and nominate candidates to the Board;

() assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief Executive as well as
the senior management;

(e) do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

) conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Company’s
constitution or imposed by legislation.

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established in March 2012 and
currently comprises five Directors, including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Hoi Wong and Mr. Lin En Fu, three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze, the chairman
of the committee is Mr. Wong Hoi Wong.

During the year, the committee convened one meeting, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy and
discharged its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

N
X
i
iz
mr
|
oy
il
8
B
H
>
|
>

5. ZRESIFNHUABTREARBI G -

6. ZHRERBENEBKEZNATAR -

7. ZRESERNRFEFIAQRMAMERAAMRE -

BiE - O
8. ZEgA:
(@ TEEHRFAESENRE - ABRMERK  WREARQ
AR MEE RN ERSEER
) YEEREANAEETSRS
€  AHXBNIEMITERHE L
@ BEEF- SETHREAZEREREBABETE
WEREERESSRLER
e ERERTHEEZERNBITESSE THRED
KEE s &
U] FEEFGTHIETE AR AL Z 2 TS FrE
XA BT E BRI ESK « IR R -

9. ZEgEERUARERAETERRE -

ERiZFP
10. ZERATHRERTER -

RARREZEERN T ——F=AK  HREHAARESE
T EENTESTIREERMAEREL  —RBIIFNT
EEMMALE  REEEERRESLL  ZESIFRTH
e -

FH-RZEEAR- 2R RIEFEHRE - ABRRE
B WIEARBMEERRAESSRIEERETESSR
T EHE D RIBAE -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial

statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance

with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also

ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their

reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 26 to 27 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(@)

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in August 2001 and
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin
Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze. The Audit Committee
possesses a wealth of experience and expertise including accounting
profession, and regulatory experience both in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and has made relevant amendments to accommodate the
requirements of the GEM Code, where appropriate.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and to maintain
good and independent communications with the management as well as auditor
of the Company.

In discharging its responsibility, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

()  reviewed the draft annual and quarterly financial statements and draft
results announcements during the year; and

(i) reviewed, in conjunction with the auditor, the development of accounting
standards and assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year to review the results of the
Group.

Audit Committee is to be responsible for making recommendation to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXE

nEE (4

AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2014, audit fees and non-audit service fees payable
to auditors amounted to HK$564,000 (2013: HK$477,000) and HK$205,000 (2013:
HK$NIl) respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control periodically to

ensure it is effective and adequate. The Company convened meetings periodically to

discuss financial, operational and risk management control.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents during the year.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

1.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends
declared.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the related requisition deposited at the registered office.

For including a resolution relating to other matters in a general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, if a shareholder wish to propose a
person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination which
shall be given to the Company Secretary within the 7-day period commencing
the day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as
may be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time).

Shareholders have the right to receive corporate communications in hard
copies.

Shareholders whose shares held in the Central Clearing and Settlement
System (CCASS) may notify us from time to time through Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited if they wish to receive our corporate
communications.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
Shareholders are provided with information about the Company, in order to
enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders, and will
regularly review this Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available
all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the website.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Registrar.

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain language
and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange
is also posted on the Company’s website immediately thereafter. Such
information includes financial statements, results announcements, circulars
and notices of general meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend the meetings. Board members, appropriate management
executives and external auditor will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions.
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Directors’ Report
ERERE

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date are set out on pages 28 to 89.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 34 and in note 31 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had no distributable reserves.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 90 to 91.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Hsieh Yi
Chen, Ms. Wu Chiao Ru and Mr. Lin En Fu shall retire from the board by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEFEERE (8)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors and Chief
Executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 under the Laws of Hong Kong), which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they have taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

ESRIBTHAEBRNATES il

RZZ-NE=A=1+—0 FEERIBETRABREARF
S EAEAAREOEE (E& R EBENIE 571 B 5 LA E 15D
(MEHRIEGEG ) EXVEL) 2 - AR RESFRHAIE
RIERE 7 R B GRDIE XV EE 7 8 #iC e AR &) K
Rz e E R (BERIEE S R B GHIA BIR R ER
B AR EERER) - REF S RAEIERPIF 362
BRBRNZIEX Pl 2 R Mz #amskiE g SURIRAIZER
ERAIES.61 FAME R R R Rz EmERMmT

(@) RATSEBRKIBRARMNDZRE

Company
Type of interests and Percentage
number of shares held of the
ERERNRAERGEE Company’s
Personal Other issued share
Name of director interest interest Total capital
p N
BEBITRA
ESnR BAREZR HitpiEs st BoLE
(Note)
(Hi73)
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin 52,950,000 - 52,950,000 2.54%
MEHT R E
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong - 15,086,000 15,086,000 0.72%
ToEEE

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Eaglemax International Investment Limited
(“ElIL"), a company owned by Intelligent Management Limited (“IML”") as the trustee of
Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust, a family discretionary trust, the objects of
which include Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31
March 2014, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By virtue
of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors had short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons (not being the Directors and Chief
Executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as follows:

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of shareholder Nature of interests shares held capital
EE BT

B¥E RABE >

BREREHE EEME ROEE BMABEDE
Ms. Wang Ying Fang Beneficial Bz 400,000,000 19.21%

Wang Ying Fang 2 =

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, there was no person (not being
the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEFEERE (8)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased from one supplier only.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 81%
of the total sales for the year and the sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 24%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and the
supplier of the Group for the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the year are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the substantial shareholders or the management shareholders
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
competed with or might compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
March 2014.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Group’s strategy is to generate stable income through property investment.
Our corporate values rest in growing the presence of our existing businesses and
identifying new business and investment opportunities not limited to our current
businesses in order to deliver value to both our customers and our shareholders.
All such opportunities will continue to be diligently and carefully evaluated by the
Board with the view of delivering value to our shareholders. We believe implementing
disciplined business strategies and prudent financial management serves this
purpose by preserving the longevity and sustainability of our businesses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in August 2001 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and to provide supervision over the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times to review the results of the
Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited.

BDO Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Wong Hoi Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
IR E

Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
|

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{85E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Thiz Technology Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (thereafter referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 28 to 89, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgements, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chi Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P04945
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meRETERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZEZZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2014 2018
—E-mE =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHET FT
Turnover EER 5 1,350 784
Cost of sales and services S I RIS AR (186) (284)
Gross profit EF 1,164 500
Other revenue and gains Habg A R Uzs 5 1,298 30
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (1) (242)
General and administrative expenses —RITEER (8,050) (6,975)
Finance costs R R 7 (1,247) (1,095)
Loss before taxation R RIEE 8 (6,836) (7,782)
Taxation BiIA 11(a) (537) -
Loss for the year EEEEHE (7,373) (7,782)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 E =
ltem that may be subsequently HgnEmoEE
re-classified to profit or loss: BmMIER -
Currency translation differences BismE = 4 19
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERHEKNESHEEE (7,369) (7,763)
Loss attributable to: LT R EE
— Owners of the Company A VNCIEZZSUN (7,360) (7,771)
— Non-controlling interest — IR (13) (1
(7,373) (7,782)
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEEAFEZEKRREE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company EAVNEIL 2N (7,356) (7,748)
- Non-controlling interest — IR R (13) (15)
(7,369) (7,763)
Loss per share: BREHE :
— Basic and diluted (in cents) — ER R e (i) 14 (0.4) (©.5)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

At 31 March 2014

RZZE—NFE=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NmEF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P EE FHT FAT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R KA 15 20 24
Investment properties LA 16 43,125 -
Deferred development costs JEIEFBERL AR 18 - -
43,145 24
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 - 108
Trade and other receivables, FE U R IE I E At FE YR IR
deposits and prepayments & RIEFKRIE 20 443 508
Bank balances and cash RITEFNRS 21 15,427 9,867
15,870 10,483
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETERTA 22 63 36
Receipts in advance TBUR IR 550 -
Other payables, deposits received and accruals EMEAFIE - BliRe RERTIE 23 1,786 1,954
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENEERBRE 24 1,573 1,880
Loan BN 25 - 6,891
3,972 10,761
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AF) FE 11,898 (278)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 55,043 (254)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Amount due to a director ENEEHRIE 26 6,777 7,699
Amount due to a shareholder JEAH IR R 27 21,870 12,000
Loan BN 25 7,223 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAAE 11(o) 537 -
36,407 19,699
Net assets/(liabilities) BE /(8 FE 18,636 (19,953)

BRI RB AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
IFEMBARIRE (4E)

At 31 March 2014 HRZZT—F=A=+—H

2014 2018
—E-NF —ZT—=%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHET FT
EQUITY fE=

Share capital %N 28 208,274 168,274
Reserves & (189,342) (187,944)

Equity attributable to owners of AATHEBA
the Company PE(L IR RE 18,932 (19,670)
Non-controlling interest By (296) (283)
Total equity RERBE 18,636 (19,953)

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of WEMBRAR-_ZE—NERNA -/ NARKEESH & RIS

Directors on 26 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: TZE - WAHTHEERREE
WONG HOI WONG LIN EN FU BE BE
Director Director FolE MEH
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Statement of Financial Position
BRI R

At 31 March 2014 R=-Z—FE=A=+—H
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P EE FHT FAT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R KA 15 - -
Interests in subsidiaries FrEME AR 2 B 17 46,126 -
46,126 -
Current assets REBEE
Bank balances and cash BITEFERES 21 7,451 7,235
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H At PR FRIE 23 808 816
Net current assets REEEFE 6,643 6,419
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 52,769 6,419
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHT /B A RIFRIA 17 19,508 11,008
Net assets/(liabilities) BE /(A 2E 33,261 (4,589)
EQUITY e
Share capital %N 28 208,274 168,274
Reserves & 31(d) (175,013) (172,863)
Total equity B 33,261 (4,589)

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 26 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG HOI WONG
Director

LIN EN FU
Director

T - WA THIEERERE

IS BMRN T —NFRNA - HRALEF IR JIXE

BF

MEE

BRI RB AR AR

2013/14 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHRENER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—Z

ME=A=+—BILFE

2014 2018
—E-NF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Cash flows from operating activities REEKCHERE
Loss before taxation GRS ] S (6,836) (7,782)
Adjustments for: o
Fair value gain on investment properties TEYZE AT ERE (1,250) -
Interest income FEMA (18) (12)
Interest expenses MERZ 1,247 1,095
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEURARIE 2 R (B & 18 27 -
Provision for obsolete and slow B ROR I F E R
moving inventories 108 43
Depreciation e 22 56
Operating cash flows before working EEESHHAICLCERSRE
capital changes (6,700) (6,600)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 314
Decrease in trade and other receivables, JE SRR T8 % E fth JE Wi 0 0E
deposits and prepayments B RIBRFIER 38 1
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTRRIEIE 0, O ) 27 (436)
Increase in receipts in advance TR IEE N 341 -
Decrease in other payables, deposits HibFEMFIE - EWIRS
received and accruals K pERH R A (377) (134)
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes : 2 8 27
Cash used in operations KEEBFARSE (6,663) (6,828)
Interest received EHAILE 18 12
Interest paid BFE (339) (981)
Tax refunded BRERK - 49
Net cash used in operating activities REEKFARSFE (6,984) (7,748)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHZHERE
Payments to acquire property, =R/ EN
plant and equipment 5 KRR AR 2 R (17) ©)
Cash acquired through acquisition of WEEM B A RIS RS
subsidiaries (Note 32) (MI3E32) 4,794 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZTHEE (FTA)
investing activities ZREFE 4,777 @)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued]
SeEBEERER(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—Z

ME=A=+—BLFE

2014 2018
—E-NmEF —T—=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FET
Cash flows from financing activities METBHZHERE
Repayment of loan BEER - (5,357)
Repayment of amount due to the HEBENESLBIIE
spouse of a director (273) (269)
Repayment of amount due to a director BEENESHRA (960) (960)
Increase in amount due to a shareholder FEA IR R FRIEIE N 9,000 12,000
Net cash generated from financing activities METHEEZRSTFE 7,767 5,414
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERALZEER
cash equivalents i, () B8 5,560 (2,339)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REHNzEERBEEEER 9,867 12,192
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash e RBLEEEACERSBHTE
and cash equivalents - 14
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZRERESEZEEE
(Note 21) (Mizx21) 15,427 9,867

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

+— IR

“E-mFE=A=

FE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL

Thiz Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Cap.22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 6 December 2000. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37 Ma Tau Wai Road, To Kwa Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM”) on 27 July 2001.

On 11 October 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
approved the establishment of Level 1 American Depository Receipt program for
the Company’s shares in the United States of America.

The Group engages in (i) property leasing; (i) trading business; and (i) an
information technology industry, in which, it is a developer and provider of a
range of Linux solutions including Linux operating systems, application systems
run on Linux. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 April 2013

The Group has adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are effective for

the current accounting period.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 iR R M= (48

31March2014 —Z—WF=HA=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. IMNSBUBRSERN (SBHHBRSE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) a11) (5&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 April 2013 (a) IRGEE] R(EE] B TS RS %EA —

(Continued)
HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to measure fair
value when it is required or permitted by other standards. The standard
applies to both financial and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three
levels in this measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS
7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date (i.e. an exit price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market.
Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial statements to assess
the methods and inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of
fair value measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively.

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value measurements of the
Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2013 and therefore has no
effect on the Group’s financial position and performance. The standard
requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements and these
are included in Notes 16 to the financial statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

Effective date
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets (i)
and Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (iv)
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements (iii)
2010-2012 Cycle
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements (i)

2011-2013 Cycle
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R Mt aE (48)

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. RS BMIHFRSEN(SBUFRSE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) 1) (48)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet (b) BAmBERER ] &I25]SBMIFRS

effective (Continued)

Effective date:

(i)  Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

(i)  Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

(i) Annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring, on or after 1 July
2014

(iv) Available for adoption — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding appliance
guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities.

A8 (78)

E 4=

() M-ZT—NEFE—A— B2 BRBENFE SN
(i) MA-ZT—IFE-+A— B2 BB FE BN
(i) AZTE—EF+tA—HIZERANFEM

SRV HR 5ER
(v) AIEEMA —RHIEA R B SR E SIS RS
HRE T M IFREEREE R ERET

BEFEASERFEZET - KHEREERSH
=i

ZEEEPE BB ST ERERRILMERIE
%I CBEEREBMEERIMTEEENOER K

BEERARRAFREENER - WEBHEH
%E;I o

BERUBREEAF IR -SRI A

BBV B HRELEAFON  eMEEDEARA
FESZHER AT ENEREERNANERER
CRHEENEKEARSHEENEGNRERER
AT EBRHENBRIRER - EHRETIEE
SIRAE - BEEARENE M2 EmRRIRERIE
W ARVBREENFEIREBBBSHENE
VHAEABLRMEERR  DERTERT - HiRA
FEFABRNEHEERIN ZABEERARE
FHEEHATEEZHSENEME2EARGER B
R AIBE FWE R SRR
Gh - BEMBHRE LN FORRE ES S ERF39
FRIERCREERESRABIRE -

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik

37



38

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 iR R M= (48
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear. Among them HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”
has been amended to clarify how the gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation are treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model. The carrying amount of the asset is restated to revalued amount.
The accumulated depreciation may be eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may
be adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount of the asset and the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal
the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount
after taking into account accumulated impairment losses.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors so far concluded
that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretation (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, these financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified for investment properties, which are carried at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interest
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 iR R M= (48

31 March 2014
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interest
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the asset has been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it is probable that future economic benefits of the expenditure will
flow to the entity, and the cost of which can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset or a separate
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Computer equipment 33%
14%-33%
Furniture and fixtures 14%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and conditions. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
anticipated sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses after the end of reporting period or to
management estimates based on prevailing market conditions.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where
the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through
profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. During the year, the
Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables which are
subsequently accounted for as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)

)

i)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the asset have been impacted. Objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

i)

iif)

iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

(g) Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group

)

i)

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

FA T S R AL (4R

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

4. E @§+IER'__F’("|E)

(H =MEE (&)

(@

(i)

(i)

(@ RKBEHET

Y

@

B EERE ()

ﬁﬁlﬁﬂéﬁ%ﬁé*ﬁ%ﬁﬁé%iﬁ MR IR E S

BEEW IR E SR BRARE R E M
FEH& KIBRIBRSN - FEULBERT - RERRERE
ERBERDE - AR BRI BB
RZEEEM - AR TAIREZ SBHERY
T M T e LA B MR TR R S - T BB AR
hERzZESZERSEERE - MZAEA
BERZIREEREE - RIBRERIENEER
Bl o Bk Mk R B AR W E ST A B %
HsH 2 BRTE N B AR IERR -

BBFIE%

BERMNEERFEEREBEERENARNERH
HEADENERAZTNE - BERMNEERE
BEER ARG SN EE HE (ER) NE
BRITRIEF RAIBR S WA Z A -

IR HEE
1ﬁ$’*l§§ﬁ§%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁz/f\ﬁﬁéﬂ M
MEemEEDERERERRERASITENS
3B I RIS E'JA%JHE?FEEZIE%
TZEREERESRTE

DEERETS L
SEERRTzoMBERERTR - RIEM
B ZANEBEERH R Y emaBEREET
B REHETHHE -

#nTA

AR EIT2 DT RRDWASRE (&40
BRERBEITRAR) LR

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik

43



44

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 iR R M= (48

31March2014 —Z—WF=HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

0]

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group
(Continued)

i) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables, deposit
received and accruals and borrowings are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

iv)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
concerned to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received

and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

(K)

M

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenses are also written off as incurred except for those
incurred for specific projects which are deferred where recoverability can
be foreseen with reasonable assurance and comply with the following
criteria: (i) the product or process is clearly defined and the costs are
separately identified and measured reliably; (i) the technical feasibility of
the product or process is demonstrated; (i) the product or process will
be sold or used in-house; (iv) a potential market exists for the product or
process or its usefulness in the case of internal use is demonstrated; and (v)
adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion
of the product or process are available.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the expected economic useful lives of the products,
subject to a maximum period of five years commencing in the year when
the products are put into commercial production.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“‘CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m

Thiz Technology Group Limited

—

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities arising from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profits are not
recognised.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate
tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment
property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Taxation (Continued)

(n)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, foreign
currency transactions are translated into individual entity’s functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives)
are expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items (including
comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in translation reserve. Such translation differences, to the
extent attributable to the owners of the Company, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period when the foreign operations are disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(p)

(q)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Employees’ benefits

i) Employee leave entitlements
Salaries, annual bonuses and paid annual leaves are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present value.

i) Defined contribution retirement plans
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement

scheme are expensed as incurred when the services are rendered by
the employees.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from

borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Related parties (Continued)

(o)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2014

(HLE)

—E-mE=A=1-8

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Share-based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees and others providing
similar services, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long
as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest,
the increase in the fair value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees
and others providing similar services, the fair value of goods or services
received is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity is recognised.
For cash-settled share based payments, a liability is recognised at the fair
value of the goods or services received.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances and excludes value added tax or other sales
related taxes.

i) Revenue from sales of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This
is usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

i) Software development income from provision of technical support
services are recognised when the services are rendered.

i) Rental income is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for operating leases set out in Note 4(i).

iv)  Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [Continued]-

5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 5.

Turnover represents the Group’s gross rental income, the invoiced value of

trading income and software development income of Linux based software, after

allowances for returns and discounts and net of value added tax. An analysis of

the Group’s turnover, other revenue and gains is as follows:
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FRE - HithIA R U ES

I

EEBEAEERAESWA - BB Linux 115 3%
WAZBREE  WMHRRE - MR EBER R
G# - AREEXBERAMBARMEZ AT

2014 2018
—E-mF —ZT—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Turnover: R

Trading income BEHHA 335 588
Software development income BAFRZERA 235 196
Rental income HeWA 780 -
1,350 784

Other revenue and gains: HA WA Wz
Fair value gain on investment properties (Note 16) BREAMENFEYE (HiE16) 1,250 -
Interest income FEMA 18 12
Exchange gain I 5 s 4 -
Sundry income HIEI A 26 18
1,298 30
Turnover, other revenue and gains BEE - Hbl A Rlkss 2,648 814
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions
and to assess the performance.

The Group has three (2013: two) reportable segments. Each of the Group’s
reportable segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. Details of the business segments are summarised
as follows:

(@ the trading business segment that engages in the trading of computer
accessories and household goods;

(b) the software development segment that engages in the development
and provision of technical support services to Linux based software and
hardware products; and

(c) the property leasing segment that engages in property leasing in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amount due to the spouse of a director, amount due
to a director, amount due to a shareholder, loan, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

There was no inter-segment sale or transfer during the year (2013: HK$Nil).
Central revenue and expenses including other revenue and gains (except for
fair value gain on investment properties) and finance costs are not allocated
to the operating segments as they are not included in the measurement of the
segments’ profit/(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision-makers for
assessment of segments’ performance.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. NEPIMS (58)

(a) Business segments (a) EBRNEP
Trading business  Software development  Property leasing Consolidated
ERER BHmR WERE ]
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-IF =% ZB-NF _2--4 ZB-NF “T-=-F ZB-IF —T-=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR FET TR TR THERx FET TR THR
Revenue from external customers  RESNREFE Z WA 335 588 235 196 780 - 1,350 784
Inter-segment revenue PERRBA - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AZH/AHPYPA 335 588 235 196 780 - 1,350 784
Reportable segment (loss)/profit R 2|AH (B18) /157 (850)  (1,045) (7) (118) 1,885 - 1,028 (1,169)
Reportable segment assets AERHLEE 250 431 18 10 43,126 - 433%4 441
Reportable segment liabilities AZHRAHAE (149) (133) ® @ (716) - (868) (137)
Other segment information: Hi &R
Interest income FIBBA 18 12
Finance costs RAMK (1,247  (1,005)
Fair value gain on investment RENE 2 NTE
properties e - - - - 1,250 - 1,250 -
Depreciation & 6 25 1 1 1 - 8 26
Unallocated depreciation AOENE 14 30
Total depreciation Ees 22 56
Additions to non-current assets  RIMEFEREAE 10 5 3 - 41,876 - 41,889 5
Unallocated additions to AAEMIEERBEE
non-current assets 4 -
Total additions to ANEFRDEERR
non-current assets 41,893 5
BIRSRIREEAER AR  2013/14FH 53
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. NS (18)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit/(loss), assets (b) CIZHRNEBZIEH(FE) - BERSEZHER
and liabilities
2014 2018
—E—-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss before taxation MRBLAIE R
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A 2HH T (EE) 1,028 (1,163)
Other revenue HAWA 48 30
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ERHEMARD IR (6,665) (5,554)
Finance costs A& R AR (1,247) (1,095)
Consolidated loss before taxation BRI A B (6,836) (7,782)
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FA&T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIE2HOHBEE 43,394 441
Cash and cash equivalents HehReEEEE 15,427 9,867
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE 194 199
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 59,015 10,507
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities 2R HEE (868) (137)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEA E (537) -
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEESR
— Amount due to the spouse of a director —ENESBEBRE (1,573) (1,880)
— Amount due to a director —ENEEIE (6,777) (7,699)
— Amount due to a shareholder — JEARER A (21,870) (12,000)
—Loan —B® (7,223) (6,891)
— Others —Hfh (1,531) (1,853)
(38,974) (30,323)
Consolidated total liabilities rAEBERE (40,379) (30,460)
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.

(c) Geographic information

During the reporting period, the Group’s operations and non-current
assets other than financial instruments (specified non-current assets)
are located in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC (2013: Hong Kong,
Taiwan, the PRC and the Middle East). The specified non-current assets
information below is based on the location of assets.

Segment information of the Group by geographical locations of customer
is presented as below:

Hong Kong Taiwan

B =)
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-QmEF “T--F Z3-RF “T-=F
HK$000  HK§000 HK$000  HKS$'000
TéEx  FExr  FEx  TEx

R #5 S R AL (4R
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NEPERE (18)
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(BEFERBEE)RINUREE - aBRTE(Z
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REPREMEI D AREZ D EPERT -

PRC Middle East Consolidated

HE HR &a
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

“3-mF -“T-=F -“E-MmEF -T-=F ZB-mF -“T-=F

HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEn  TEr  TEx  TET TR TEx

Revenue from external customers ~ RESNREE ZMA - - 335 271

BEFRBEE 4 7 6 3

Specified non-current assets

(d) Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base is concentrated and there were four
customers (2013: four) with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenue. In 2014, rental income from each of the two
tenants in the property leasing segment amounted to approximately
HK$321,000 and HK$154,000, respectively, sales from one customer in
trading business segment amounted to approximately HK$309,000, and
income from one customer in software development segment amounted
to approximately HK$235,000 (2013: revenue from each of the three
customers in the trading business segment amounted to approximately
HK$309,000, HK$154,000 and HK$99,000, respectively, and from
one customer in the software development segment amounted to
approximately HK$196,000).

1,015 44 - 9 1,350 784
43,135 14 - - 43,145 24

(d) FREFZER

REBZEPEMES HPNE(ZT—=F: 1
BVEPZRPFEMEREERAZI0% AL c R=ZF
—OF - RYMERESBEMBHEEMEZHS K
A5 BI#) 321,000 47T K. 154,000 70 * RE S¥ER
DEE —BE TS 2 WAL A309,000787T + HREX
HRES B — BB P TS 2 WAL A235,00074 7T
(ZZ—=F REIEBHIHBEZ=-—REFHMEZ
I A 73 Bl 49 4 809,000 7T + 154,000 7T 199,000
BT RBUHESIE —REPEZHBALA
196,000/ 7T) °
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERR
2014 2018
—E-mEF —ZT—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FT
Interest payable to a director (Note 26) FEREERE (MEE26) 278 326
Interest payable to the spouse of a director (Note 24)  FEfT & ERMEF B (HizE 24) 61 75
Interest payable to a shareholder (Note 27) FERTRERAE (PHEE27) 576 294
Other loan interest HiBEHFE 332 400
1,247 1,095
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. BRiRAIESE
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiIT
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BB AT IBACHIBR T 51518 -
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 125 284
Cost of services rendered EAR AR IS AL A 61 -
Depreciation e 22 56
Minimum operating lease payments: KERE 2 HEMAERE -
office premises BN Y/ES 805 818
Auditor’s remuneration [ Gl e 564 477
Staff costs BIMKA
(including directors’ emoluments): (BREEEM2) :
Salaries and other benefits e REAMET 3,721 3,814
Pension scheme contributions RIRS BN 320 373
4,041 4,187
Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventories B BT E RS
(included in cost of inventories sold/cost of sales) BIAEETFERAESHERAN) 108 43
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

31 March 2014

9. EBKSRITHAEZME

—T—-mFE=A=+—H

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursued to the GEM Listing Rules and RBBIFR ERBRBEBATGDIE 16116 - ETE
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: e HENT -
Salaries.
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total
e 2RR EBRe
EBEWS HAib3gFl B3N Bat
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
2014 —E-mF
Executive directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong Tl - 1,030 15 1,045
Lin En Fu MAEH - 486 - 486
Non-executive directors: FEHITES -
Lin Chien Hsin RERT 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen WEZ 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRT5 1A 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive directors: B IEMITES
Chan Mei Sze BRERF 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi KA 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny Rk 48 - - 48
288 1,516 15 1,819
2013 —E—=F
Executive directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong FilEe - 1,029 15 1,044
Lin En Fu WEE - 486 - 486
Non-executive directors: FEHITES
Lin Chien Hsin MRIEET 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen EINEES 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRI5 40 48 - _ 48
Independent non-executive directors: B IEMITES ¢
Li Zhe (resigned with effect RE(BZT——F
from 17 August 2012) NATERET) 18 - - 18
Chan Mei Sze BRETF 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi KAEE 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny (appointed with M (BT ——F
effect from 17 August 2012) NATERBER) 30 - - 30
288 1,515 15 1,818
BRSRIREEAR AR 2018/14FH
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments, and neither incentive payment nor compensation
for loss of office was paid to any director during the current and prior year.

(b) Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals during the
year included two directors (2013: two directors) whose emoluments are
set out above. Details of remuneration of the remaining three (2013: three)
highest paid employees of the Group during the year are as follows:

ESRSRITBAEZME (18)

@ (&)

RAFERBEFE  MECANEEFRERRAETR
BEMME 2 2P ARBEEE( @ ek E
B 2 WE N T EAES -

) REARIEESHFALEREREER(ZT—=
FMBER) MM ZFEHIW L - RFR -
AEBZHRT=A(ZZ—=F: =ZR)EaiHESE
ZMEZ FEHSIWT

2014 2018

—E-NF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e M REMET 930 900
Pension scheme contributions BRIKSET MK 38 38
968 938

The aggregate emoluments of each of the highest paid employees were
less than HK$1,000,000 for the current and prior years.

The aggregate emoluments of each of the members of senior management
were within the following bands:

AEERBEFERRSHEE IS EFEHER
1,000,000/ 7T °

BREEEEKRE M AREE TIFHMEER

2014 2013

e E3 —E—=F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AH N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 87T 7 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 A 7LZ 1,500,000 47T 1 1
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10. PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The MPF Scheme has operated since 1 December
2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The central
pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
all retired employees and the Group has no further obligations for the pension
payments on post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

The Group’s contributions to pension schemes for the year ended 31 March
2014 amounted to HK$320,000 (2013: HK$373,000).

Rt 75 S R P AL (4R

31 March 2014 =—Z—NF=H=+—H

RiNEstEl

AEBRBRGERBEFEGD - REABEEERS
et 2 BB RY \E%’E@%\JIE AER IR KR RIS (738
ReFtEl)) - aEeFE A= ??iiﬂ——ﬂ—ﬁti
e AEEZREBEAFHFE R -—BOLIELHE - RA
REBBESF ERAME L R E B AR - RS
FEZEETNBELERAS  BEAKEZEEDFEF
B AEEpRESF IR Z BREHFZBREEM
Ao

RABEIEE 2 ARRIMBERAR 2 REAZEBEHTIER
Bz R REAREFE - ZETEMBARIALRNE
R—BotAPRERKREFEERHI - hREKREE
AN ERDRRERZMARKE  MAKEBA
ERHFAINZ BRNEBFAEEMRASEE

REZE=ZZT—NFEF=A=+—HBLFE A£EELR
K& ETEI#H 320,000 L (= —=4F : 373,000 7T) °
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11. TAXATION 11. TRI8
(@) Taxation for the year (a) AFEFIE
2014 2013
—E-NmF —ZT—=f
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Deferred tax for the year REFIRERIE 537 -
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax and AN AREBNMEEEGFEGHTFHIBEERE - W
Taiwan enterprise income tax has been made as the Group has sustained HAEHFBFER PECEMESH LS EDER
estimated tax losses for both years. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere, SR - Hihih 7 FEEFOSEFFE (M8 ) JTHiR
if any, have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions EAREFRREER T FLAEER ZIRTTH R IR
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations BEN - MBI E -
and practices in respect thereof.
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to loss before taxation per NEEHRIBEIZGE I ERERTE ZBTRTERE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: BRI :
2014 2013
—E-0OF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before taxation FrEiRIEs 18 (6,836) (7,782)
Taxation calculated at Hong Kong profits #16.5% (ZZF—=% : 16.5%)
tax rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) ZEBNEHBEE 2 BiE (1,128) (1,284)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 RS2 1,210 998
Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries REA R ERERAAE 2B R
operating in the other jurisdictions TR R 2 8 183 -
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERRIBEB 2 HGTE 253 286
Tax effect of unrecognised deductible RERAMBEREERZ 2 BB E
temporary differences 21 2
Tax effect of non-taxable items PAMERIER 2 R E (2 @)
Taxation for the year AEERIA 537 -
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued]) i

The components of recognised deferred tax liabilities are as follows: (b)

Accelerated

FA T S R AL (4R

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

11. TIA (4&)

CHEREERAEB B EARBIIT

Revaluation of

depreciation investment
allowance properties Total
DnEFE
e REWES L Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 R=ZT—=—FMH—H
E=ZT—=F=A=+—H - - -
Charge for the year REE N 224 313 537
At 31 March 2014 R-ZB-NE=A=+—H 224 313 537
The components of unrecognised deductible temporary differences are as € RERAIMBEREER ZERTDOT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E—mF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
Unutilised tax losses KRB AHIBEE
PRC subsidiaries FEIME AR 10,254 13,506
Taiwan subsidiary BEMRBAR 11,668 11,599
Companies operating in Hong Kong REBLEZ AT 22,358 22,358
44,280 47,463
Provision ] 2,028 1,901
Decelerated tax allowances BIRTIEITE 3 5
46,311 49,369
Note: Ik -

Deferred tax assets in respect of the deductible temporary differences have not been
recognised in these financial statements owing to the absence of objective evidence in
respect of the availability of sufficient taxable profits that are expected to arise to offset
against the deductible temporary differences.

The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC subsidiaries and the Taiwan
subsidiary would expire in five years and ten years from the respective year of loss
respectively. The unutilised tax losses accumulated in those group entities operating in
Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

BN FEUE R A B R HE S 2 ERRDUE T R AR A
MRz ERMEER - BULERTBRERAR AT RE
EERMRBLEHREE -

FERBENBARRE L ADBHEABRBO RN EEZ
EREFEERFARTFAYR - REBLEZRRZRE
FABIRR B AT R I o
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31 March 2014

12.

13.

14.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

—ET-MNE=A=+—H

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Of the Group’s loss attributable to the owners of the Company, a loss of
HK$3,844,000 (2013: HK$2,687,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2013:
HK$Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$7,360,000
(2018: HK$7,771,000) and weighted average of 1,926,024,921 (2013:
1,682,737,250) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

As the outstanding share options during the year ended 31 March 2013 had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share, the conversion of the share
options was not assumed in the calculation of the diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 March 2013. The Company has no share options outstanding at
31 March 2013 and 2014. Accordingly, the basic and diluted loss per share for
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 are the same.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

12.

13.

14.

RSB ABIEEE

EARRNBHEE ABEAREBEIEF - 3,844,0008L(=F
—Z=4 : 2,687,000/ 7T ) BB A R R 5 RR AR IE o

R

ADERREERGRE RS RATRE (ZB—=4F
TETT) -

sREE

REEZZ—MF=A=1+—HIEFE SRELEE
TDIEARRNEHEE ANELEE 7,360,000 (=T —=
7,771,000 7T ) R FERNB BETINETFE L BRK
1,926,024,921 (=T — =4 : 1,682,737,250 % )5t & -
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31 March2014 —ZT—MF=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M% ~ BB RR

Computer Office Furniture Motor
equipment equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
ERRE WAERE BHMREE "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FAT FAT FHT FHT
The Group AEE
Cost: B
At 1 April 2012 RZZE——FWA—H 573 1,175 393 217 2,358
Additions NE 5 - - - 5
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR 5 2 1 - 8
At 31 March 2013 RZT—=%=A=+—H 583 1,177 394 217 2,371
Additions = 4 13 - - 17
Additions through FBRUENBARRE

acquisition of subsidiaries (FHEE32)

(Note 32) - - 1 - 1
At 31 March 2014 R-E-NE=A=1+—-H 587 1,190 395 217 2,389
Accumulated depreciation: Z2ETE -

At 1 April 2012 R-ZZE——FWA—H 557 1,159 350 217 2,283
Charge for the year REELH 14 9 33 - 56
Exchange adjustments fE 5 R 5 2 1 - 8
At 31 March 2013 RZT—=%=A=+—H 576 1,170 384 217 2,347
Charge for the year AFEELH 5 6 11 - 22
At 31 March 2014 R-E-NE=A=1+—-H 581 1,176 395 217 2,369
Carrying amount: BRE(E

At 31 March 2014 R-E-NE=A=+—H 6 14 - - 20
At 31 March 2013 RZT—=%=A=+—H 7 7 10 - 24

BRSRIREEAR AR 2018/14FH 63
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.Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Mm% -~ ME Rkt (48)
Computer Office
equipment equipment Total
EIRE WAERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT
The Company AT
Cost: R
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 R-ZE——FmWA—H
and 31 March 2014 —T-=F=ZA=+—H
kZZ—mHF=A=+—H 2 3 5
Accumulated depreciation: REHTE -
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 RZE——FWA—H -
and 31 March 2014 —E—=f=A=+—H
k_Z—WFE=A=+—H 2 3 5

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2013 and 2014

IREE :
R-BE—=FR=-ZT—NF
=ZA=+—H

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FA T S R AL (4R

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

16. IREM*K

HK$’000
FAT
The Group rEH
Fair value: NEE
At 1 April 2012 and 2013 35’2\_ T _FR_E-=FA—H -
Additions through acquisition of BUEERTE A BDARE (MEE32)
subsidiaries (Note 32) 41,875
Change in fair value included in other HIAE MU A Rz 2 AT EEE) (MEE5)
revenue and gains (Note 5) 1,250
At 31 March 2014 RZB-—NF=ZA=+—H 43,125

The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties leased
out under operating leases amounted to HK$780,000 (2013: HK$NIl) for the
year. Direct operating expenses arising on the investment properties in the year
amounted to HK$61,000 (2013: HK$NIl).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2014 has been
arrived at on market value basis carried out by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuer who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of the investment properties being valued.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is
set out in the above table.

Change in unrealised gain for the year included in profit or loss for investment
properties held at 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$1,250,000 (2013: HK$NIl).

AEEAREERARBELERERAZEEMEMBH
HEBAR780,000F (=T —=F : THT) - &F
EREEYEMEENEREERSA61,0008 T (=%
__ﬁz i/%7?)

R-ZE-NF=A=+—-AFEEZKENMEZAFE
TYRBY EEGEMMEEFEFRARRTELEME
Mgt ZEFEFRARFAERIREBEXE
1% - BT ER AN XM E KA A EHERLR

BAMENAFERFIMBEEATFENE - BB
RAFEEHFOE RN LK -

RZZE—NFE=A=+—ARBREDESALRE
1855 7 KRR E 8 51,250,0008 T (ZZF— =4 :
/%71:)"

P

A
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31 March 2014 —Z—F=HA=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The major inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group’s investment

properties are set out below:

16. IREMF (&)

N

Relationship of
unobservable

REERENENFEFAEMBZEEWABERANT

Investment Fair value Valuation technique Significant inputs to fair
properties hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs value
fRERM R FUBRRHEE Sensitivity
REYHE ATFEER FTEBARIE ERTAHEHABE RVEZER BRE
Commercial units Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking The higher the If the market asking price
HSEX: AV FE 34 The key input is recent price of comparables, asking price, to the valuation model is
market asking price of taking into account of the higher the 1% higher/lower, while
comparables the discount on asking fair value all the other variables
bR EZ AR AL price; size, facilties and &S REE - BIA were held constant,
BT LB A T TS building management FEES the fair value would
BB between the subject increase/decrease by
properties and the HK$524,000.
comparables, ranging b ERER 2 IS EE
from HK$30,000 to m 1% - TETA
HK$34,000 per square Hfh S5 R
meter. R ERIE M,
QA EPa it ihikol 524,000 87T ©
B EZEHE
BRI E
ZRN - RiERKE
B #ERETYH
30,0007 7T 2= 34,0007
7T
Car park spacing Level 3 Comparison approach The selling price The higher the If the selling price to the
located in the IR The key input is selling obtained from the selling price, the valuation model is 1%

same building

of the above

commercial units
B Pl s

RIAERAEZ A

E:iva

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and best

price of comparables
obtained from building
management office
of the Group’s
investment properties
LESEE BB ABIER
REEREME LR
EEBRAEMEZ
ATt BUREAEE

use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The Group investment properties are situated in the PRC and held under
medium-term leases.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

building management higher the fair higher/lower, while all
office of the Group’s value the other variable were
investment properties EEBRs  BIA held constant, the fair
of HK$263,000 per car FERS value would increase/
park spacing decrease by HK$21,000
BAREEREMEZ KR il EREE 2 EEE
EEERAEFEN nmA1% - mAraE
&E  AEH®BM tE BT - AT
263,000/ 7T BRI, 421,000
BT ©
AP EFEDNRE LAY ERR IRKERSE  BHER

R EER o

REBERHEZ HEWMETIRETHEERE -
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31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. FriGHiE A S 2 i
The Company
R
2014 2013
=2-mF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETMRARAD - HRBA 21 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries i ClEENGIE e 212,535 162,145
212,556 162,166
Less: Provision for impairment loss B R EBERE (166,430) (162,166)
46,126 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries AIEEPNGIE ¢ 19,508 11,008
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are interest-free and unsecured. In U (FEN)MBATIRE N RE REE - EER
the opinion of the directors, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are not B EY(FER) B AT ZRIEBERREHARE121E
repayable within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and was BRERE  HEEREBERARERY AERBEERBE -
therefore shown in the statement of financial position as non-current assets and
liabilities.
During the year, the directors reviewed the financial position of subsidiaries ERN - BERFARBAT ZHEMRRATEES THEBA
and identified that certain subsidiaries have suffered continuous net losses for AN BASESESSERFEAN _ZET—NE=
past several years and had net liabilities as at 31 March 2014. Accordingly, =+—BBEAETE - Bt - 4,264,000 % 7T 2 EBINRE
an additional impairment loss of HK$4,264,000 (2013: HK$3,809,000) was B (ZZT—=4 : 3,809,000/8) EREE_T—NF
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2014. =RA=1+—BIEFE FTUER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2014 —Z—F=HA=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

17. PRGBS 2

35 <

&

REIE-—NF=A=+—H MBRARZFBEET :

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
Name of company and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
il v ERTEBEREE N
REEE SR & i B HEfEA FEEREEDL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
=¢:3 A
Thiz Technology British Virgin US$100 100 - Investment holding
Group Holdings Islands/Hong Kong 1003E7T WEER
Limited RBRLESBE
Thizlinux Inc. British Virgin Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 137 WEER
HEBELRS /BB
Thizbiz Inc. British Virgin Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 137 WEER
HEBELRS /BB
Thiz.com Inc. British Virgin US$200,000 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 200,000%7T WEER
HEBELRS /BB
Kingray International Inc. British Virgin US$2,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Note (i) Islands/Taiwan 2,000,000 7T REER
(B (i) KBRS/ A8
Thiz.com (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,0008 7T and provision of
BN FIfE e i (%) management
BRAA services
REER K
RHER RS
Thiz Design Group Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,0008 7T and provision of

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT SRR M5 ()

31 March 2014 =—Z—NF=H=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PRiGBR B A S 2 iER (18)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
Name of company and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
S, ERTEBEREER NG|
NEER R 2 it B &R FEERERDL FEEH
Direct Indirect
=%:3 [SiE3

B RS AR Taiwan NT$1,700,000 - 100 Trading business
MEFHARAA] ag 1,700,000 31 & # BHE

Beijing Thiz Ying Jia PRC, limited liability US$1,650,000 - 100 Trading business
International Trading company 1,650,000 37T B %%

Co., Limited (*Ying Jia”) B ' GRETAHE
(Note (i)

Jb TR B & 52 B R
EEERLAR ([&5%=])

(BEEG)

ThizLinux Software PRC, limited liability US$1,300,000 - 100 Provision of technical
(Shenzhen) Company company 1,300,000 7T support to Linux
Limited (Note (i) R BREEAR based software and

BB GRYI) BIRA T hardware products
(BRE @) TR Linux BB 12 &

Z B sz %

158 (8 BFAR AR PRC, Limited Liability US$340,000 - 100 Property investment
(Note (i) & (ii)) (“JingRui”) company 340,000%7T MERE
(HREM R @) (TS B ARETAF

Note: B

(i) The subsidiaries are registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC
law.

(i) subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31 March 2014.

In the opinion of the directors, the above subsidiaries principally affected the
results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

v

ZEWE AR REDBRAZEMZINBERE -

au

(i) R-E-NF=ZA=+—-RALFELEZHERF -
BEERA LHAMBAREAEENFEEBEEERY

LEREEFEZ BN o MR HEE M E QA
ZFIE  BERRRREEBNITE -

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik
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18. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 18. JEFERAZE AN
The Group
rEE
HK$'000
FET
Cost: B
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FA—H 46,966
Exchange adjustments b 3 % 336
At 31 March 2013 and 2014 R-EB-ZFR-Z-NF=A=+—H 47,302
Accumulated amortisation and RETHE SORE RS
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FWA—H 46,966
Charge for the year REEZH -
Exchange adjustments Rk 336
At 31 March 2013 and 2014 R-ZB—=FR-ZT-—NF=A=+—H 47,302
Carrying amount: BRTE(E :
At 31 March 2013 and 2014 RIB-ZFR-Z-NF=ZA=+—H -
Deferred development costs represented costs incurred for development of the IR AN B EFERBEARER Z Linux FES
Group’s Linux based software in prior years. KN o
19. INVENTORIES 19. F&
The Group
rEE
2014 2018
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Computer accessories, BN REARERE
household goods and tea - 108

70 Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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31 March2014 —ZT—MF=A=+—H

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. BUERIAR Hith [EURFRIA - RERFRTR

PREPAYMENTS 18
The Group
rEE
2014 2018
—E-mF —ZT—=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Trade receivables FEUERIE 53 54
Other receivables, deposits and HibfEIWEIE - e RIERIE
prepayments, net of allowance (FBREE) 390 454
443 508

No interest is charged on trade and other receivables. FEUARTE I Efh FEURIE AT S ©

(@ The average credit period to the Group’s customers is 90 days (2013: @ AEBGTEFPZFHEEHAVA(CZT—=F:
90 days). As at 31 March 2014, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade 90R) - R=ZT—MFE=F=1+—8  REEZAH
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date FTE 2 AREEERRE (BB RERE) 2REKR D

was as follows: Mo
The Group
AEE

2014 2013
—Z2-QmEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 27 27
31 - 60 days 31E60H - 3
61 -90 days 61290H 26 -
91 - 180 days 91%E180H - 17
181 — 360 days 1812360 H - -
Over 360 days 360 B - 7
53 54
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31March2014 —Z—WF=HA=+—H

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

@)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

(Continued)

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$280,000 (2013:
HK$253,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that the collectability of receivables is remote.
Consequently, an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$280,000 (2013: HK$253,000) was made. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Except for the above, no further allowance has been made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and provision of services.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
are as follows:

20. EUERIB R Hith EURFRIE - B R FEITHR
I8 (7%)

(@)

(#8)

RZZE—WMF=A=+—H ' £A%£HE 280,000
TL(Z=ZZF— =4 : 253,000/8 ) 2 FE U BR I8 1% 18 5
EEALERRE o E5RIE 5B FEKEIE B E R
ARz BEFEE  BERERAZSEWGRIEBZH]
We el M ASR f + EEVE 280,000 7T (=B — =4 -
253,000 7T) 2 B REFTEERE - AEE W ER
ZEERFTE TIER -

Brbaish - WEBIEEE R RERIRGZ EE T
Yol SRIR R S — 20 4R -

EAERREZ BYSRBZ RO HTOT

The Group
EE

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=f

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHERT FT

Neither past due nor impaired 3 fsE B sOR(E 53 30

Less than 1 month past due wERL 1 E A - -

1 to 3 months past due #H1 £ 3@ A - 17

More than 3 months but not B EA31E A LA LB BB 6 1E A

more than 6 months past due - -
More than 6 months but not BEA61E A LA EETEA121E A

more than 12 months past due - -

Over one year —FE - 7

53 54

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a small
number of independent customers that have no recent history of default.
Accordingly, the management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there have not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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Notes to the Financial Statements [Continued]-
B #5 iR R M= (48)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

31 March 2014

I8 (%8)

—E-ME=A=+—H

20. [BUERIA R HfthEUGRIA ~ & RFATRR

(©)  The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables © FR - RBUIERIEZ REREE (RIER T REBREE
during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, are D) Z BB
as follows:
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
At 1 April RMA—H 253 251
Allowance for doubtful debts REEBE 27 -
Exchange adjustments IE H FA%E - 2
At 31 March R=A=+—H 280 253
(d) The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables @) FR - EMENEIE RIREE (RIEETEREEE
during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, are IBE S 2B -
as follows:
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April RUA—H 848 836
Exchange adjustments Ik - 12
At 31 March R=A=+—H 848 848

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s other receivables of HK$848,000 (2013:
HK$848,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually

RZZ-—MF=A=+—H  %E 2848000
TL(ZZ—=4F : 848,000/ 7T) 2 H A FEU TR TAH
impaired receivables relate to balances which are expected to be RIS T A I o RIS R E R I s g s
irrecoverable as it had been outstanding for over one year and settlement B BEEERSERKTE  ZEHED R —
FUFPREREDEELE - Bt ZEFIATEAT
AJ 4g (Bl 1 4 Hi 848,000 7T (= F — =4 : 848,000
BT 2 BARES T - AREUELZEER
FrA RIS -

had been delayed despite various collection actions taken. Consequently,
an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of HK$848,000
(2013: HK$848,000) was made. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 iR R M= (48

31 March 2014 —%

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

—mE=A=+—H

21. RITHBFERIRE

The Group The Company
AEE NG|

2014 2013 2014 2018

—E—MF —T—=% —E-mF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHT FAT

Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRE 15,427 9,867 7,451 7,235
At 31 March 2014, included in the Group’s bank balances and cash were RZZE—NFE=ZA=Z+—H ZEBZRTEFELRE

amounts of approximately HK$2,812,000 (2013: HK$787,000) denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other

492,812,000/ 0 (ZZF—=4F : 787,000/ 7C) AAR
BIAREDEE  WHEHRAFE - ARETATEHE

currencies. However, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations BEMEE - R - RIEFRIMNEETIERTE MEE - &

and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies

ERMNEERRTE  AEEDEREREETINERS
ZRITRIBAREREMEY -

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

22. TRADE PAYABLES

22. [EfTERIA

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables FERTERIE 63 36

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchase.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of reporting

ENRETIEBEEHRBIAREESSE -

RIBEPRZ EBARBEZRERAMOT

period:
The Group
rEE

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
0-30 days 0Z30H - -
31 - 60 days 31E260H - -
61 —90 days 61290H 27 -
91 - 180 days 91E180H - -
181 - 360 days 1812360 H - -
Over 360 days 360 HLA L 36 36
63 36
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FA T S R AL (4R

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

23. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 23. Hfth[EfTFRIE « BBIRE RIESTFRIE
ACCRUALS
The Group The Company
rEE AATE
2014 2018 2014 2018
—E-NF —T—=F —E-MEF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FAT
Deposit received Blize 508 359 - -
Other payables and accruals H fth FEA FRIE R FERT IR 1,278 1,595 808 816
1,786 1,954 808 816
24. AMOUNT DUE TO THE SPOUSE OF A DIRECTOR 24. [EfTEFE BRI
The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate calculated R ZZIBEERR  REEREENEFE(RAEE
on a monthly basis and repayable on demand. Interest charged during the year EHE) RERERER - AFEEMNFEA61,000%8 T
amounted to HK$61,000 (2013: HK$75,000). (ZZ—=% : 75,00087T) °
25. LOAN 25. 8RR
The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate quoted by a bank in ERAEER  REE—H %Efiﬁﬁat&z%/%rﬁiﬂ
Hong Kong and was repayable commencing on the thirteenth months after EAREREANREFRERAA-_Z——F A LB &S
the loan drawdown date on 7 June 2011. On 31 March 2014, the lender T=EREER R_ZE—NF= H +—HB  BRAE
confirmed in writing that no demand for settlement of the principal amount of AHERAR S NENANBABTEZREEREA
HK$6,643,000 (2013: HK$6,643,000) and accrued interest of HK$580,000 6,643,000 7T ( =& — =4 : 6,643,000 7T ) K& FE&T F
(2013: HK$248,000) would be made before 6 June 2016. Subsequent to the /£.580,000/8 7T (ZZE—=4 : 248,000/ 7C) * MR EH]
end of the reporting period, pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 20 Kt REBEARRMHERATLAPA-ZT—HF A
June 2014 signed between the Company and the lender, the lender agreed to Zt+ARERE  ERARERFAUSRAEOE
subscribe for an aggregate of 72,965,360 ordinary shares of the Company at TLERIE AN A R] 72,965,360 A% AR - AR EUE YA
HK$0.1 each to fully settle the amount due from the Group at the same date. SESE - BEFBHNYBMRMTEL0 -
Details of which were set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.
26. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 26. [EfTESRIE

The amount due to Mr. Lin Chien Hsin of HK$6,777,000 (2013: HK$7,699,000)
is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate per annum. Mr. Lin
Chien Hsin has confirmed in writing to the Group that no demand for settlement
of the amount of HK$5,110,000 and accrued interest of HK$1,667,000 would
be made within 12 months from the end of reporting period. Interest charged
during the year amounted to HK$278,000 (2013: HK$326,000).

JE SRR T 58 4 2 30386,777,0008 (=T — =4 :
7,699,000 ) NEE A RIEBEBREBFFETE -
MEFAEUER S RAARNEEER - HBEHREBRK
B+ @R Rt ' ERKFEFIES,110,0008 7T & FERTF
81,667,000 7T AN EJERFEA278,0008 L (ZF
—=%F :326,00087T) °

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik
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31 March 2014 —Z—F=HA=+—H

27. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at 3% per annum. On 31 March
2014, the shareholder confirmed in writing that no demand for the settlement of
the principal amount of HK$21,000,000 (2013: HK$12,000,000) and accrued
interest of HK$870,000 (2013: HK$294,000) would be made on or before 1
June 2016. Interest charged during the year amounted to HK$576,000 (2013:
HK$294,000). Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, pursuant to the
subscription agreement dated 20 June 2014 signed between the Company
and the shareholder, the shareholder agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of
100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.1 each to partially settle

27. [BIIRRRFRIA

JEA R R FIE BRI - IR FE R E3% AT B - RZF—T
F=ZA=+—08 BREEAERN=-T—F<A—AH
A T & B8 E 3018 21,000,000 L (=T — =4 :
12,000,000 7T ) & fE&HF2.870,000 7T (ZF— =4 :
294,000 7T) ° FAHIKRF EE576,0008T (=T —=
F 1 294,000/87C) - RIEBRE - REBEARBHERR
FINBMA-Z-NENA-TEHORERE  BER
E R A LAEARE(E0.1/8 TR 4 A 7]100,000,0004% &
AR VERBOBKAEESRE - BEAFBEHNME

the amount due from the Group at the same date. Details of which were set out MEMFE40 ©
in Note 40 to the financial statements.
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRIX
Number of shares HK$’000
RHEHE FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RZFE——FWNUWA—RH - —T—=FK
1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and 2014 —ZT—MFE=A=+—H
BREECA BTz TR 4,300,000,000 430,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R-FE——FWA—BK
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —E-=F=ZA=1+—H 1,682,737,250 168,274
Issue of shares on acquisition of assets and ~ FRXEE 0.1 /8 7T.2 LiBAX
liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ FEBKHEHE A FUREEE
(Note) B EETRD (M) 400,000,000 40,000
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NFE=A=+—H 2,082,737,250 208,274
Note: BisE

On 22 August 2013, pursuant to the Group’s acquisition of the entire equity
interests in Kingray International Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Jing Rui
(collectively the “Kingray Group”) as further detailed in Note 32, 400,000,000
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.1 each of the Company were issued
as the consideration at fair value of approximately HK$45,958,000, of which
HK$40,000,000 was credited to issued capital and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$5,958,000 was credited to the share premium account.

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

R-T—=F\A=-+=8 ' BEREEWRER Kingray
International Inc. & £ 2 E B M B A 7l 5 (4 58
[Kingray 5@ |) 2 2 #B a0 G — H B IEE32) - &K
A A)E$17400,000,0000% SR EIEO. 1 BT 2 HiBRIER A
T8 4745,958,000 % 7T 2 {8 + 40,000,000 # 7T 5T A
EEATRRAN » MaR T 5,958,000 7Tt AR HEE ©
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FA T S R AL (4R

31 March 2014 =—Z—NF=H=+—H

CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 29. OIRRR B 5%
Number of shares HK$’000
R EE FHERT
The Group and the Company REBERAEAAT
Authorised: EE
Non-voting convertible preference shares of HRZZT—Z—FWA—H - ZT—=F
HK$0.1 each at 1 April 2012, r=ZT—NFE=A=+—B5KREE
31 March 2013 and 2014 0.1 BT 2 BTSRRI E SR 900,000,000 90,000

The Company had no outstanding issued convertible preference shares as at 31
March 2013 and 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 5 August 2004. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the eligible participants for their
contributions to the Company and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees and to provide them with a direct
economic interest in attaining the long term business objectives of the Company.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any employee,
proposed employee (including any executive and non-executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries), adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, customer
and supplier of any member of the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for ten years from 5 August
2004 during which the directors may make offer to grant share options to eligible
participants.

The maximum number of shares available for issue under options which may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of the above
limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval with such participant and his
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

30.

RZE—=ZFRZF—MOF=A=+—H ARFEEK
TEB BT RRE LR -

BBRxIEsTEl

RIE-ZZZNFE/\ALABBZ BBERER  ARFR
MRS B (TR D) - BRI S5 ESEA
BER2EEQ[ARNFFHER - UHPHARRIEERE
BRERBENRES  URBERENGERLENZD M
ERARAZEMEFER - BREFSZEERSHE
EEREMNAKEKRERRZES  EER (BEARF
REMBARZAITRIFRNITES) - FAHAA - BER - R
BA - EERE - BPRHER -

BREF SR —_ETNEN\ALARHABAERTE  &F
ARZBEHRRA ERSBERRRNBRE

RBA QB FTERAN 2 BB AR AT 81% 2 B A ) 7 3%
TEhESE8E  ARTEEADHITRMNZ10% -
KL B ER12EABRETEDETEBE TS
P2 EE T BRE(BECITERERTTEZBERE) M
EERETETZENESHE  TEEBREAHZ
EETERNZ1% - E— PR TBH Dl REZ ERRR
T MRERRIE - MZE2REREBEAL(EE
SAIZR ETRA) ARLRERERR -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

If options are granted to a connected person (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) or his associates, the granting of such options will be subject to all
independent non-executive directors’ (excluding independent non-executive
director who is a grantee) approval; where options are proposed to be granted
to a connected person who is also a substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates which will result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted or to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person under the Share Option Scheme in the past
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (1) exceeding 0.1%
of the total issued shares for the time being; and (2) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, the granting of such options will be subject to approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company taken on a poll. All connected
persons will abstain from voting (except that any connected person may vote
against the resolution).

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The option will be offered for acceptance for a period
of 5 days from the date on which the option is granted. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors and shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant and the directors may provide restrictions
on the exercise of the option during the period an option may be exercised.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the board of directors
at their absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant, which must
be a trading day; (i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; or (i) the nominal value of a share.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meeting.

No option was granted under the Share Option Scheme during both years and
no option was outstanding as at 31 March 2013 and 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

31. RESERVES

The Group

(@)

Capital redemption reserve

The reserve represents the amount equivalent to the nominal value of the
Company’s shares cancelled arising from repurchased shares in prior
years.

Special reserve

The reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM.

R #5 S R AL (4R

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

31. &t
%S

(@

BB R

ZREEEAERARRNREFEELZ HIEER
B EEZ S -

Rl

FAlFEHEARABROEEERSEHEARTRNT
BIRIR T RBEBAEBASERBEAKEHBL
B EE 5 -

Translation reserve ) ERfHEE
The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the N HEEEMERREGINEEM BRI MEE
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is ZIERZEE o ZRBIRME AN T E ST BORRIE ©
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 4(n).
Reserves of the Company ) ARaElZFHE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRARR{E BARREEHE RiEE oy
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT FHT
(Note 31(a))
(M3 31(a))
Balance at 1 April 2012 RZZE——FNA—RHZ&EH 28,060 84 (194,511) (166,367)
Loss and total comprehensive income EBERAFE2ERGERE
for the year - - (6,496) (6,496)
Balance at 31 March 2013 and RZE—=F=A=+—HK
at 1 April 2013 —ET-=FNOA-—HZEH 28,060 84 (201,007) (172,863)
Issuance of shares on acauisition BRKEBHBARKEBEAE
of assets and liabilities through KB EETRN, (FiFE28)
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28) 5,958 - - 5,958
Loss and total comprehensive income EERAFEERGERE
for the year - - (8,108) (8,108)
Balance at 31 March 2014 RIET—NF=A=+—Hz#&# 34,018 84 (209,115) (175,013)
BIRSRIREEAER AR  2013/14FH
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31.

32.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

RESERVES (Continued])
The Group (Continued)

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 March 2014. Under the
Companies Law (Cap. 22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the dividends
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISTION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 August 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of
Kingray Group from an independent third party at a nominal consideration of
HK$40,000,000 which was satisfied by allotment and issue of 400,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.1 each. Further details
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 19 July 2013.

The principal activity of Kingray Group is property investment and its principal
assets are investment properties located in Shanghai, the PRC. The Kingray
Group did not constitute an integrated set of activities and assets as no
significant process was acquired. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the acquisition was in substance an acquisition of assets and liabilities, being
the investment properties located in Shanghai and its associated assets and
liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries.

Since the acquisition was considered as an acquisition of assets and liabilities
and the consideration was fully settled by the Company’s equity instruments, it
was an equity-settled share-based payment transaction and accordingly the fair
value of the equity instruments issued in connection with the acquisition should
be determined based on the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements [Continued]-

32. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

33.

THROUGH ACQUISTION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Details of the fair value of net asset acquired in respect of the acquisition of
Kingray Group are as follows:

AT R L (4R

31 March2014 —ZT—MF=A=+—H

BUEBHEASIRBSEREE (&)

BRI Kingray & B IR 4 B BB A FIE . 15
T

HK$’000
FH&T
Net assets acquired: Frikig 2 EEFE -
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y% - W RaEAE (HEE15) 1
Investment properties (Note 16) A (MFE16) 41,875
Bank balances and cash RITHETFRES 4,794
Other payables, deposits received HAiENFIE - YRS RIERT B
and accruals (503)
Receipts in advance TEWFIE (209)
45,958
Consideration satisfied by: XRAREZAER :
Issuance of shares of the Company, BATARERG (FRAFE)
at fair value 45,958
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEFIEECRSRATE .
Bank balances and cash acquired Fr BRI TR LR E 4,794

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS
Operating leases - lessor

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease rentals
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

3. KETHERIE
KEHE - BEA

RZZ-WF=A=+—08 AEERETAIHELE
MEERKEBRERE 2 M LENT

The Group
REE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Within one year —FR 539 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive EEZFRF (BEEEMT) 563 -
1,102 -

The investment properties have committed tenants for an average term of one to
two years.

REMFZ AP FHIAREEHR—FEMF -

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 F ik 81
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33.

34.

35.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

(HLE)

—T-MFE=A=+—H

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS (Continued) 33. KREMSHIE (18)
Operating leases - lessee KETRE —RATEA
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had outstanding commitments under non- RZE—NF=A=+—H AEERNRL=WERE
cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises and staff quarter, IEETARELCEHE  AHRBETAE - HEHAMN
which fall due as follows: T~
The Group
EE
2014 2018
—E-NmF —T—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FTT
Within one year —FR 179 312
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRAF (BREEREME) 11 93
190 405
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for the office CEHERBRASERERAEMEREIEEEN
premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to e MOFHRB—Z=F  GAXNEEHS -
two years with fixed monthly rentals.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. HARERE
References are made to an announcement on 13 March 2006 in relation to a ZRANRZZEZERF=ZA+=ZBHEZAM - BREAR
claim of service commission of HK$3,750,000 (RMB3,000,000), together with A—MHhENBEAREZ —GAEERNEARRRRR
the interest of HK$284,000 (RMB227,000) by an ex-employee of Ying Jia, a 1M % 3,750,000% 7t ( A & # 3,000,000 7T ) & [[{ 7| &
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, against the Company. The ex-employee 284,000/ 7T (AR % 227,000 7T) » AR #I5Z2 A AR
has obtained a judgement in his favour in the court of the PRC (the “Ruling”). B ([&#E]) -
The Company’s legal advisers confirmed that, under the laws of Hong Kong and ARBVEAZERER  BREERFASHSEE e
the Cayman Islands, there is no statutory mechanism for judgement made by the DA #HIE R BDEF T E L B HA AT A BB KA S
courts in the PRC to be enforceable either in Hong Kong or Cayman Islands. The HEWT ARFESHE  REREANITINFE -
directors of the Company believe that the enforceability of the Ruling is doubtful MAEBBERPRRERE  WHTERZPRREEZ
and the Group is not liable to the claim. No provision has been made in these EA AR B ER I B RERAIEL R -
financial statements in respect of any contingent liabilities arising from this claim.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BREAEALRS

Material related party transactions and balances are as follows:

(a) Balances with related parties

Details are disclosed in Notes 24, 26 and 27 to the financial statements.

(b) Interest charged by related parties

Details are disclosed in Notes 24, 26 and 27 to the financial statements.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. BRAEALRZ (1)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) XE2EBEASZEHE
Details of directors’ emoluments are shown in Note 9(a) to the financial EEE 2 FBEAI B REM T @) °
statements.
The remuneration of other key management during the year was as FRHEMFTEESEE MM T ¢
follows:
2014 2018
—E—NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Short term benefits EEEF 930 900
Post-employment benefits BRIREF 38 38
968 938
The directors are of the opinion that balances with related parties and EERE BEMEALTZEGNAREATIE
related interest charged by related parties which also constitute connected ZBBAEIMEKBIZER EMRA T2 BEERS
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules were carried out in the normal TRAEE — R EBSBRPET IR TER —KD
course of business of the Group and conducted on terms no more BIEIRZNERETSL ©

favourable than normal commercial terms.

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BMRBEIR
The Group’s capital management objectives are: AEEERERERMT :
()  toensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern; () MRAEEBEHNGECEEETE
(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders; (i) AERREHRAERSR
(i) to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and (i) ZRARERELEE &
(iv) to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and acquisitions. (iv) REERDGEITAIRES OF UL -
There is no change in the Group’s capital management objectives from prior BEAFEEAL  AEBZEAEIE W EET o
years.
The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to its overall financing REENBREREEBEIETERSSE - AEFEEIE
structure. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments HEEAZEE WRELESAREEBEE 2 RARFE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of TEHABERE - BT RISHNABEERERE  RNEE
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the FARRETREZIRESE  RRERERARN - BTH
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital e B EEENRMIKEE -

to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. REBAZINE I Z B ARIREPRF o

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the normal
course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 2 months past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 50.9%
and 50.9% (2013: 50.2% and 87.2% respectively), of the trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from related parties and other parties to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates
current at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

31 March 2014

37. MBEREE (&

)

(b) RENEERR (&)

—T—-mFE=A=+—H

Total
contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted year or on Over 1
amount cash flow demand year
ERTHRMER R—FR
REE HaREsE RIRER —FE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHETT FHT
The Group REE
2014 —Z-NF
Trade payables FERTRRIE 63 63 63 -
Other payables, deposits HibEMFIE - BEI
received and accruals Re RIEFTRIE 1,786 1,786 1,786 -
Amount due to a director JERTERFIE 6,777 7,115 - 7,115
Amount due to the spouse of a director N EEREHRE 1,573 1,648 1,648 -
Amount due to a shareholder JERTAR B RIE 21,870 23,235 - 23,235
Loan B& 7,223 7,942 - 7,942
39,292 41,789 3,497 38,292
2013 —E—=4F
Trade payables FEBRIE 36 36 36 -
Other payables, deposits HibESFIE - BIR
received and accruals R RIETHIE 1,597 1,597 1,597 -
Amount due to a director R EERE 7,699 8,002 - 8,002
Amount due to the spouse of a director FENESRREHIA 1,880 1,948 1,948 -
Amount due to a shareholder FERT AR B FRIE 12,000 13,080 360 12,720
Loan B® 6,891 7,332 7,332 -
30,103 31,995 11,273 20,722
The Company AN/
2014 —E-F
Other payables H b FE ST FIE 808 808 808 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATBTE A RIFRIE 19,508 19,508 - 19,508
20,316 20,316 808 19,508
2013 ==
Other payables H A FERTFIE 816 816 816 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHE A B F0E 11,008 11,008 - 11,008
11,824 11,824 816 11,008

BRI RB AR AR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank balances and
borrowings with variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out below.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group at the end
of reporting period.

37. M EREIE (18)

(c) MIZREMRR

REEZ NEEREERIRERTBNETE 2R
TRERER - RIBFERF B ZERBAEE T
KBS MM ERER o A KE b E I EEERE 2R
BEN T

TSI AR BN R E R RIS o

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —T—=%
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
LIRS BRI
% HK$’000 % HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Bank balances RITHET 0.1% 15,403 0.1% 9,846
Variable rate borrowings EEF B
Loan B3 5.0% 6,643 5.0% 6,643
Amount due to a director ENEERIE 5.0% 5,110 5.0% 6,070
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENEERERE 5.0% 1,097 5.0% 1,370
12,850 14,083
Fixed rate borrowings EEMEEE
Amount due to a shareholder FE AR B R IE 3.0% 21,000 3.0% 12,000
Total borrowings BEEE 33,850 26,083

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 24, 25, 26 and 27 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s loss after taxation and accumulated losses
by approximately HK$26,000 (2013: increase/decrease the Group’s loss
after taxation and accumulated losses by approximately HK$162,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would not be affected by the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the beginning of reporting period
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of next reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2013.

(d) Currency risk

Currency risk to the Group is minimal as most of the Group’s transactions
are carried out in the respective functional currencies of the group entities.

(e) Fair values estimation

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at the end of respective periods.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial position and results of operations are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions
and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
the Group believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of significant accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.
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38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
Impairment losses for trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers to make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might be higher than expected
and could significantly affect the results of future periods.

Write down of inventories

The management assesses the net realisable values of inventories based on
prevailing and expected market conditions. Provision is made when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
realised. The assessment requires the use of estimation.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties included in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at fair value, as detailed in Note 16. The fair value measurement
of which utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are
(the “fair value hierarchy’):

. Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs;
and

o Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of
the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item.

The fair value of the investment properties was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professional valuer using
property valuation techniques which make use of those significant unobservable
inputs as mentioned in Note 16. A favourable or unfavourable change to these
inputs would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding amount of fair value gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss.
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39.

40.

41.

Notes to the Financial Statements [Continued]-

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at 31 March 2014 and 2013 may be categorised
as follows:

AT R L (4R

31 March2014 —Z—WF=H=+—H

39. ERMEENREMBBENRIBE

AEBERARFRZE—NFR_TE—=F=A=+—

PRz eREERSRABIREESHENT

The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2014 2018 2014 2018
—E-NF —E—=F —E-MEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FAT
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including % 55K AT 8 2 B3k
bank balances and cash), R W RS
at amortised cost (BREBTEERES) 15,801 10,290 53,577 7,235
Financial liabilities, RS AGTEZ
at amortised cost TRaE 39,292 30,103 20,316 11,824
EVENT AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD 40. IJ[{EHAESIE

Pursuant to the subscription agreements dated 20 June 2014 signed between
the Company and each of Best Vigor Inc and Extra Bright Trading Limited, a
shareholder of the Company, (the “Subscribers”) respectively, the Subscribers
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed to issue and allot for an
aggregate of 172,965,360 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the issue price of
HK$0.1 per share to settle the loans to the extent of HK$17,297,000 owed by
the Group to the Subscribers at the same date. Details of which were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 20 June 2014.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 26 June 2014.

41.

B 1% AN A 79 Bl B2 Best Vigor Inc & Extra Bright Trading
Limited (AR BIRR) ([READR=ZT—HF A=+
Bz REWHE  REARERE  MAQRREN
BITESREME0A BT EIT RELE & 172,965,360/ &
R URRBBEREEERRBANINER &
H/317,297,0008 7T - EEFBEHRAARBHR AT
—MENA-ZHEERE -

HOERFSIRE

BN T —NFERA T NBRUELREETIRE M
Bk -
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Financial Summary
MBEE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the NTRASEABENEFEMRR I GAEEEUNREERE
Group, prepared for the last five years, as extracted from the audited consolidated BEZHE e AEE s SERGEEYBERE - AEE
financial statements of the Group. This summary does not form part of the audited FEAREIL B FGRR 2 AR RS o

financial statements.

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—MF —E-=F —T—=fF =% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FT FHTT FHBIT FHET
Turnover B 1,350 784 15,955 16,636 7,036
Loss from operations KL EE (5,589) (6,687) (8,060) (7,073) 9,771)
Finance costs BE R AR (1,247) (1,095) (960) (635) (1,178)
Loss before taxation FrEERTES 18 (6,836) (7,782) (9,020) (7,708) (10,949)
Taxation IR (537) - - - -
Loss for the year REEEE (7,373) (7,782) (9,020 (7,708) (10,949)
Attributable to: LA AL RESR -
Owners of the Company VN/NCIE SN (7,360) (7,771) (8,752) (7,708) (10,949)
Non-controlling interests PR R (13) (11) (268) - -
(7,373) (7,782) (9,020 (7,708) (10,949)

20 Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14



HnancmlSunﬂﬂary[ConmnuedI

==
BT E (48)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
At 31 March
R=B=+—8”
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mF B4 T4 T ——%F T —TF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Non-current assets EmEEE 43,145 24 75 554 1,014
Current assets MBEE 15,870 10,483 13,237 12,100 16,928
Deduct: DA
Current liabilities nEaRE 3,972 10,761 16,929 5,197 7,912
Net current assets/(liabilities) nRBEE/(AE)FE 11,898 (278) (3,692) 6,903 9,016
Total assets less current WEERTEERE
liabilities 55,043 (254) (3,617) 7,457 10,030
Deduct: pEE
Non-current liabilities B AE 36,407 19,699 8,573 10,721 17,238
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 18,636 (19,953) (12,190) (3,264) (7,208)

B RHASE AR AR 2013/14 Fik
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Particulars of Properties
e

Type Lease term

Properties held for investment BIEREWHE b Eidl HEH
Rooms 1101, 1102,1114 and 1115, R B ST IS 1999 5 Commercial Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 168,169,199 110158 ~ 110258 ~ 111458 2 111558 [GES A HR

and 200, No. 1999 Jingshajiang Road FORERIZE 168 5% « 169 5% * 199 57 & 200 %%

and Rooms 701,702,703 and 704, K& T8 5 198957 B RH& 701 5

Car Parking Space Nos. 129, 130,131 7025% « 70357 K& 704 55 KRB A7 58 1295 -

and 132 No. 1989 Jingshajiang Road, 1305% ~ 13157 & 18255 ©

Putuo District, Shanghai,

the PRC
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